1976

James M. Burrows v. Paul McGill et al : Brief of Defendants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case involves an action for recovery of certain profit sharing benefits pursuant to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Plan of the Defendant, P M Engineers, Inc., and the Counterclaim of P M Engineers, Inc. for breach of contract.

DISPOSITION BY THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT

On the 19th day of April, 1976, upon Plaintiff James M. Burrows' Motion for Summary Judgment, a hearing was had in the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County, before the Honorable Earnest F. Baldwin. On the 5th day of May, 1976, the Court entered Summary Judgment for the Plaintiff and against the Defendant and dismissed Defendant's Counterclaim with prejudice.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant seeks to have the Summary Judgment vacated and remanded for trial or in the alternative for Summary Judgment for the Defendant and against the Plaintiff.

STATEMENTS OF THE FACTS

From May, 1959, to January 7, 1975, the Plaintiff, James M. Burrows, was an employee of P M Engineers, Inc. (TR-141). During that period of time, the Defendant, P M Engineers, Inc., had in force and effect a Profit Sharing and Retirement Plan (TR-71-163) of which the Plaintiff was a member (TR-228).

During 1974, the Plaintiff in his capacity as an employee of P M Engineers, Inc. worked as an inspector at the Main Post Office project (TR-210). In his capacity as an inspector at the Main Post Office project, the Defendant removed material from the construction site. (TR-473-476). Said removal of materials was without authorization of PM Engineers, Inc. (Deposition of Paul Mc Gill at Page 71). Additionally, while a stockholder and employee of Defendant corporation, Plaintiff worked for outside firms which were in direct competition with the Defendant (TR-494-495), and charged Defendant corporation with unauthorized mileage and overtime (TR-512-514).

While an employee of the Defendant corporation, the Plaintiff herein became a member of the company's Profit Sharing Plan. As a member of that Plan, the Plaintiff was entitled to certain contingent benefits by virtue of contributions made solely by Defendant corporation to the Profit Sharing Plan (TR-78, 81, 82, 85, 87, 88). Pursuant to the terms of said Profit Sharing Plan, the rights to the benefits were subject to divestment when a member of said Plan is terminated for Material Dishonesty or failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors (TR-91), and further subject to payment of benefits over a period of years not to exceed ten years if payment of benefits is appropriate (TR-85). When the Plaintiff had been terminated, the Defendant corporation notified the Administrative Committee of the Profit Sharing Plan that said termination of the Plaintiff was for acts it considered to be materially dishonest (Exhibit P-4 Deposition of Paul Mc Gill) and failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors.

The Administrative Committee upheld the determination of the Board of Directors and then notified the Plaintiff of the determination and invoked the Plan procedures, which called for arbitration of the dispute between the parties. (TR-unnumbered pages between 164 and 165, and TR-178). The Plaintiff then refused to arbitrate and filed this law suit (TR-506).

The Defendant corporation answered said law suit and filed its own Counterclaim, claiming damages by virtue of those acts perpetrated against the Defendant corporation by the Plaintiff (TR-204-212). That in addition, punitive damages are being sought by way of counterclaim based on the malicious actions of the Defendant, both prior to and subsequent to the filing of this action, which acts were intended to harm and to damage all of the Defendants herein (TR-204-212). On the 5th day of April, 1976, Plaintiff filed his Motion for Summary Judgment (TR-348). The matter came on for hearing before the Honorable Earnest F. Baldwin on the 19th day of April, 1976 (TR-350). On the 5th day of May, 1976, the Court entered the following Order:

1. "Plaintiff be the same is hereby awarded Judgment against the Defendants, P M Engineers, Inc., Paul Mc Gill, Richard K. Klein, and Gail O. Payne, as the Administrative Committee of the Profit Sharing and Retirement Plan of P M Engineers, Inc., in the sum of \$21,406.50 (which sum represents the balance of the Plaintiff's Profit Sharing Account as of December 31, 1974, in the sum of \$25,183.06 with 85% vesting), together with interest at the rate of 6% per annum from January 1, 1975 to the date of this judgment, the sum of \$1,712.45 together with interest at the rate of 8% from the date hereof until paid, and the Plaintiff's costs and disbursements.

2. The claim of Plaintiff's for punitive damages for wrongful termination of Plaintiff and attorney's fees, pursuant to the Utah Statute relating to wages is hereby dismissed with prejudice and upon merits.

3. The counterclaim of the Defendants is hereby dismissed with prejudice and upon the merits."

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING THAT THERE WERE NO MATERIAL ISSUES OF FACT.

Rule 56 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provides for Summary Judgment. Section (C) of the rule specifically provides as follows:

"...The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, dispositions and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law."

In order for a Motion for Summary Judgment to be granted, there must be no material issues of fact in dispute, so as to entitle the moving party to a judgment as a matter of law.

Disabled American Veterans vs Hendrixson, 9 U. 2d. 152, 340 P. 2d 416.

The Court in determining whether or not to grant Summary Judgment must view the facts in a light most advantageous to the nonmoving party, and must resolve all doubts in favor of permitting the nonmoving party to go to trial and grant the Motion only when no right to recovery or setoff could be established. See Controlled Receivables, Inc. vs Harmon, 17 U. 2d 420, 413 P. 2d 807 (1956); Foster vs Steed, 19 U. 2d 435, 432 P. 2d 60 (1967); Thompson vs Ford Motor Company, 16 U. 2d 30, 395 P. 2d 62 (1964).

Since a Summary Judgment prevents litigents from fully presenting their case in Court, therefore the Court should be reluctant to invoke this harsh remedy. Brandt vs Springville Banking Company, 10 U. 2d 350, 353 P. 2d 460. The remedy of Summary Judgment is invoked only in cases where the favored party makes a showing which precludes as a matter of law awarding of any relief to the losing party. Brenner vs Utah Poultry and Farmers Co-op, 11 U. 2d 353, 359 P. 2d 18. Summary Judgment should be granted with great caution. Watkins vs Simonds, 11 U. 2d 46, 354 P. 2d 852.

Finally the Court, in review of a pre-trial Summary Judgment of dismissal must accept the facts as the Appellant contends them to be. Reliable Furniture Company vs Fidelity and Guarantee Insurance Underwriters, Inc., 16 U. 2d 211, 398 P. 2d 685.

In the present case, the lower Court made two determinations which were inconsistent with the rules and cases cited above. Said inconsistencies are treated below.

A.

A FINDING THAT AS A MATTER OF LAW DEFENDANTS FAILED TO MAKE A DETERMINATION OF FORFEITURE CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION.

In his decision of May 5, 1976, (TR-432) the Honorable Earnest F. Baldwin stated:

"That the Defendants failed to follow provisions of the Profit Sharing Plan, having failed to make a "Determination of Forfeiture" as required by the Plan and having failed to establish the right to forfeit the Plaintiff's Profit Sharing account, are not entitled to retain the funds due Plaintiff and the Defendants having failed to determine the funds would be paid to the Plaintiff over a period of time and having failed to follow the provisions of the Plan are obligated to pay Plaintiff the sums due the Plaintiff, together with interest accrued thereon."

It is respectfully submitted that the question whether or not the Committee failed to follow the Provisions of the Profit Sharing Plan presents a genuine issue of material fact, and therefore Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment should have been denied and at the very least the matter should have been reserved for trial. The Profit Sharing and Retirement Plan of P M Engineers, Inc., Article VI, Paragraph 7 (TR-91) provides:

"If a participant's status as an employee ceases because of his discharge from employment for material dishonesty or material violation of, or refusal to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Company shall promptly notify the Committee of the discharge of a participant for either of these causes and the Committee shall determine whether the Company had just cause for such discharge. Any determination by the Committee that the provisions of this Article are applicable shall be made within ten (10) days after the receipt by the Committee of notice of discharge, and written notice of such termination shall be given by the Committee to the employee, addressed by registered mail to his last known address. Within twenty (20) days after the mailing of such notice, the former employee may appeal for arbitration from the determination of the Committee. Failure to appeal within that time shall constitute an irrevocable consent by the former employee to the determination of the Committee."

The Plan provisions therefore require (a) that the Board of Directors of the Company promptly notify the Committee of the discharge of a participant for either material dishonesty or material violation of, or refusal to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors of the Company; (b) the Committee must determine whether the Company had just cause for such discharge; (c) within ten (10) days notify the employee that the provisions of the Plan are applicable in his case; (d) give such notice by registered mail.

As noted above, the Plaintiff, James M. Burrows, was notified of his termination on the 26th day of December, 1974, which said termination became effective on the 7th day of January, 1975. There is no evidence on the record to indicate the date upon which the Board of Directors notified the Administrative Committee of their determination that the Plaintiff had been terminated for cause; however, the minutes of the meeting of the Administrative Committee which was held February 21, 1975 (Exhibit P-4, Deposit of Paul Mc Gill) reflect as follows:

"The Committee has been notified by the Board of Directors of P M Engineers, Inc. that all of these employees have been terminated by management because of acts during the past year which it considered to be dishonest and not in the best interest of P M Engineers, Inc., of which they were all stockholders."

"...Mr. Green stated that if the terminations were for material dishonesty or refusal to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors, as the letter from the Board has stated, that no funds could be distributed under any circumstances until the Committee had determined whether or not the provisions of the Plan were applicable and, if so, that those employees be asked to arbitrate to determine the facts surrounding their actions."

"The Committee determined unanimously that the actions were serious enough to warrant the arbitration and Mr. Mc Gill stated that there were unanswered questions which had to be resolved prior to the distribution of any funds. He further stated that the Plan had provided a means to determine the fact and that those means should be utilized at this time."

Mr. Mc Gill stated that all of the employees in question should be contacted so that their side of the story could be told and the matter could be cleared up immediately and the first distribution made."

On the 24th day of February, 1975, the Administrative Committee notified the Plaintiff Burrows of their determination which was sent by registered letter, return receipt requested (TR-178).

Therefore, the uncontroverted facts indicate that Plaintiff was terminated because of certain dishonest acts perpetrated by him, that the Board of Directors so notified the Administrative Committee, that the Committee agreed with the determination of the Board of Directors, and so notified the Plaintiff of their determination. Once this was accomplished, the burden shifted to the Plaintiff to call for arbitration within twenty (20) days. Plaintiff failed to call for the arbitration and instead filed a law suit some fifty-one (51) days after receipt of said notification (TR-508-509). Provisions of the Plan provide that his failure to appeal within the time then constituted an irrevocable consent by the former employee to the determination that the Committee made relative thereto (TR-91). Therefore, it is respectfully submitted that forfeiture is an automatic process prusuant to the applicable provisions of the Plan, and as a matter of law, Defendants are entitled to Judgment in their favor.

It may be argued that genuine issues of a material fact remain. The primary one would be whether or not the Committee made their determination within the prescribed ten (10) day period. In addition, factual issues may remain whether the acts of the Plaintiff constituted material dishonesty or failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors. The latter will be dealt with in Point B below. However, if the Court finds that factual issues remain relative to the ten (10) day period should reverse and remand for trial on this particular issue.

B.

WHETHER DEFENDANT FAILED TO ESTABLISH THE RIGHT TO FORFEIT THE PROFIT SHARING ACCOUNT, RAISES GENUINE ISSUES AS TO MATERIAL FACTS AND THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION FINDING AS A MATTER OF LAW THAT THE DEFENDANTS FAILED TO ESTABLISH THAT RIGHT.

As a second basis for its ruling the lower Court stated in its Summary Judgment that the Defendants failed to establish the "right" to forfeit the Plaintiff's Profit Sharing account. This particular statement is unclear, since the right to forfeit is provided by the Plan itself, which obligates rather than grants a right to the Administrative Committee to forfeit in certain situations. This being the case, the Defendants need not establish the right, and the Court erred in placing the added burden on the Defendants.

If, on the other hand, the Court's contention relative to Defendants' failure to establish the so-called right to forfeit, relates to whether or not the reasons for termination constitute material dishonesty or material violation of, or refusal to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors, then we have an entirely different question.

Here, it is appropriate that we review the acts of Mr. BURRO which Defendants have complained and which ultimately led to his termination and established a basis for the right to forfeit. Those acts are: (a) the unauthorized removal of materials from the Main Post Office project; (b) removal of materials from the Main Post Office project during working hours (TR-253, 254, 255 and Deposition of Oscar Whitten at page 7); (c) working for competitors or clients of P M Engineers, Inc. while an employee of that firm (TR-258); (d) that Plaintiff charged P M Engineers, Inc. for

unauthorized mileage and unauthorized overtime. Since the lower Court had before it a Motion for Summary Judgment, these facts are assumed to be true. The question then became whether these acts constituted material dishonesty or failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors, so as to cause the Plan provisions relative to forfeiture to become operative.

The lower Court addressed itself to this particular question and found that, as a matter of law, the acts of the Plaintiff did not constitute material dishonesty or the failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors. At pages 477 through 482 of the transcript of the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, the Court discussed a theory that the acts of the Plaintiff had to relate to his employment in order that the right to forfeit be invoked and, once again, the Court found, as a matter of law, these acts did not relate to his employment and, therefore, the right to forfeit was not established.

Clearly, the alleged acts perpetrated by the Plaintiff relate to employment. Certainly, the removal of materials from a Government project by a contract administrator's inspector during working hours, the working for competitors of the Defendant, and the unauthorized mileage and overtime charges relate to Plaintiff's employment. There is a conflict in the record relating to these particular acts and whether the acts do, in fact, relate to employment, they raise material issues of fact which the trier of fact must decide at time of trial. If capable of proof at time of trial, Defendant's right to forfeit would thereby be established.

It is submitted, therefore, that the lower Court found said acts of dishonesty not to be material. The word "material" is an often used term of art and is synonymous with substantial. Lewandoski vs Finkel, 129 Conn. 526 29 A. 2d 762. Both terms are obscure and incapable of determination as a matter of law. These words closely relate to those found in wrongful discharge cases where a primary issue is whether or not an employer had "good" and sufficient cause for discharge. Once again, these words are obscure and where the record contains conflict in this regard, the question is one that a jury must decide. Roberts vs Mays Mills, 184 N.C. 406, 114 S.E. 530. Here the facts conflict. The issue of materiality must be reserved for time of trial.

Plaintiff admits working for competitors' clients or perspective clients (TR-258). Defendants contend that the work for competitors falls within the framework of failing to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors in that said acts were clearly in violation of by-laws of Defendant corporation as well as policies thereof.

It can be argued that the Plan provisions relate only to participant's status as an employee and the by-laws would therefore not be applicable. However, the Plaintiff was a stockholder as well as an employee, as was every other member of the Plan. The by-laws do constitute policies of management of the corporation (Section 16-19-25 U.C.A. 1953); therefore, the policies would reach the Plaintiff in his capacity as an employee-stockholder. The act of working for a competitor then would constitute a fail

to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Plan provisions.

The record supports the proposition that alleged acts charged do fall within the scope of material dishonesty or failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors. The Plaintiff raises the point that Defendants' investigation disclosed certain dishonest acts after the fact (TR-469). Because of this, Plaintiff contends that the Court need take cognizance only of the one act alleged -- that of removing the material from the Government project. This, however, should not be the case. So long as the grounds exist, or Plaintiff has portrayed materially dishonest acts or acts which constitute failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors during the term of employment, the immediate reason for dismissal is not that important. See Bon Heyme vs Tompkins, 89 Minn. 77, 93 N.W. 901, Kike vs Bank Sav. L Ins. Co., 37 N.M. 346, 23 P 2d. 163. These cases did not relate specifically to Profit Sharing Plans, but rather were wrongful discharge cases. They do, however, have application here. The cases hold that it is sufficient that grounds existed at the time of discharge, Marnon vs Vaughn, 189 Or. 339, 119 P 2d 366, and further hold that it is not material that the employer assign another grounds as the cause for dismissal. Haag vs Renell, 28 Wash., 2d. 883, 184 P 2d. 442.

Therefore, all of Plaintiff's acts should be considered as the proverbial "straws" in the determination of whether Defendants established the right to forfeit. That determination is a genuine issue of material fact to be determined by the trier of fact and not on motion for Summary Judgment.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN FINDING AS A MATTER OF LAW THAT DEFENDANT SHOULD PAY BENEFITS IN A LUMP SUM WITH INTEREST THEREON.

In its Summary Judgment, the lower Court ordered that all of Plaintiff's benefits be paid with interest thereon. Article V Paragraph 2, of the Profit Sharing Plan (TR-85) provides that payment of benefits in cases of termination may be made over a period of years if the Committee so elects. The election is to be made within sixty (60) days of termination and cannot be controlling here insofar as Plaintiff is concerned since the issue of termination and payment of benefits has undergone judicial process.

The Profit Sharing Plan of Defendant, P M Engineers, Inc., gives rise to contractual obligations on the part of the employer and employee. Russel vs Princeton Laboratories, Inc., 321 A 2d. 6 N.J. (1967), Frazer and Torbett, CPA's vs Kunkel, 401 P.2d. 476 (Okla.). It has been held that a discharged employee was not entitled to immediate payment of vested benefits in profit sharing plans, but must abide by the employer's decision to defer payment. See Lano vs Rochester Germicide Co., 261 Minn. 556, 113 N.W., 2d. Here the Plan provides for deferred payments, is contractual and the Court erred in ruling otherwise.

POINT III

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