1976

# James M. Burrows v. Paul McGill et al : Plaintiff- Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

UPON HIS TERMINATION WITH THE COMPANY THE PLAINTIFF WAS AUTOMATICALLY ENTITLED TO PAYMENT OF HIS VESTED BENEFITS UNLESS THE PLAN COMMITTEE TOOK AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO FORFEIT THOSE BENEFITS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THE PLAN AND HAVING FAILED TO DO SO, CANNOT FORFEIT PLAINTIFF'S BENEFITS NOW.

The provisions of the Plan relating to plaintiff's benefits are as follows:

### ARTICLE I

#### PURPOSE OF THE TRUST

"1. It is the purpose of this trust to recognize the contribution made to the successful operation of the Company by its various employees and to regard such contribution by establishing a system of profit sharing for those employees who shall hereafter qualify as participants under this trust, and for the beneficiaries designated by such employees.



2. This agreement has been executed for the exclusive benefit of the Participants and their beneficiaries. So far as possible, this agreement should be interpreted in a manner consistent with this intent and with the intention of the Company that this trust satisfy those provision of the Internal Revenue Code relating to employees' trusts." (R 73)

## ARTICLE VI

### Distribution of Benefits

"2. (a) If a Participant's employment with the Company is terminated, except for retirement or by death and except as provided in paragraph 7 of this Article, after he has been a full time employee of the Company for two (2) years or more, he shall have a vested interest in the amount then standing to his credit equal to ten percent (10%) of such amount plus ten percent (10%) of such amount for each full year of full time employment in excess of two (2), up to a total vested interest in such amount of eighty-five percent (85%). Within sixty (60) days of such termination data he shall be paid the amount standing to his credit in one lump sum, or, if the Committee elects to pay him such sum in approximately equal annual installments over a period of years not in excess of ten (10), he shall be paid the first of equal annual installments within sixty (60) days of such termination data." ... (R 85)

....

### FORFEITURE

"7. If a participant's status as an employee ceases because of his discharge from employment for material dishonesty or material violation of, or refusal to follow the instructions of the board of directors of the Company, the Company shall promptly notify the Committee of the discharge of a participant for either of these causes and the Committee shall then determine whether the Company had just cause for such discharge. Any determination by the Committee that the provisions of this Article are applicable shall be made within ten (10) days after the receipt by the Committee of notice of discharge, and written notice of such determination shall be given by the Committee to the employee, addressed by registered mail to his last known address. Within twenty (20) days after the mailing of such notice, the former employee may appeal for arbitration from the determination of the Committee, as hereafter provided in this Article. Failure to

appeal within that time shall constitute an irrevocable consent by the former employee to the determination of the Committee. An appeal shall be taken by such employee by filing a written notice of appeal for arbitration with the Committee, and by simultaneously designating one arbitrator from among the employees of the Company, regardless of whether the person so designated is a Participant under this trust. The second arbitrator shall be selected by the Committee, and such arbitrator may be an officer, stockholder or employee of the Company. The first and second arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator. The decision of a majority of the arbitrators shall be binding upon such former employee, the Committee, the Trustee, the Company, and all other parties, and shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction. Whenever the Committee determines that such employee has been discharged for cause and the time to appeal has expired, or whenever an appeal for arbitration is decided adversely to such employee, the amount standing to the credit of such participant shall be allocated to the other participants in accordance with the provisions of Article V. Whenever the Committee determines that there was no cause for the discharge of such employee, or whenever an appeal for arbitration is decided in favor of such employee, the amount standing to the credit of such employee at the time of his discharge shall be distributed to such former employee in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 2 and 5 of this Article." (R 91)

A review of the provisions relating to forfeiture makes it clear that unless the committee acts to declare a forfeiture within the time limit (10 days) after notification by the company, their right, if any, to forfeit the account of a participant expires.

Whether the committee was informed by the company of the termination of James Burrows on December 26, 1974, as stated by Paul McGill, (Dep. Paul McGill, p. 5, lines 23-25; p. 6, lines 1-5) or at a later date does not

matter. The first formal meeting of the committee took place on February 21, 1975 and it is undisputed all members of the committee knew of the reasons for termination of the plaintiff by that date. The next formal meeting took place on March 7, 1975.

The official minutes of February 21, 1975 meeting are as follows:

"The Committee determined unanimously that the actions were serious enough to warrant the arbitration and Mr. McGill stated that there were unanswered questions which had to be resolved prior to the distribution of any funds...

Mr. McGill stated that all of the employees in question should be contacted so that their side of the story could be told and the matter could be cleared up immediately and the first distribution made." (Ex. p. 4 attached to Dep. of Paul McGill, Transcribed by Harmon)

The foregoing minutes disclose that even Paul McGill was not sure that the alleged acts of James Burrows warranted the drastic action of forfeiture of his vested account benefits.

The minutes reflect that the Committee knew it had to make a decision as to whether or not a forfeiture would be declared. The committee's attorney was present and advising the committee. (Ex. p. 4 attached to Dep. of Paul McGill transcribed by Harmon)

Rather than pay the vested benefits or declare a forfeiture as required by the plan, the Committee did neither, but instead invited plaintiff to arbitrate the matter.

The failure of the administrative committee to make a decision and to declare a forfeiture within the required ten (10) days, (Article VI P. 7; R 91) after notification by the company of the discharge of James Burrows, deprived the committee of the right to make or declare a forfeiture at some later date.

In defendants-appellants brief, it is contended that a forfeiture was declared and the mere contention of such a fact raises an issue of fact and precludes a Summary Judgment.

Defendants-appellants, however, are bound by their own documentary evidence and their own testimony as contained in the depositions of the only four (4) witnesses who would be competent to testify that forfeiture was declared. Such evidence and testimony demonstrates that no forfeiture was declared within ten (10) days or at all.

The minutes of the Administrative Committee (Ex. P. 4 and p. 5 attached to deposition of Paul McGill transcribed by Harmon), reflect that no forfeiture was declared on February 21, 1975 or March 7, 1975.

The deposition of Richard Klein, one of the three members of the Administrative Committee, makes it clear that even as of the date of the deposition, (Jan. 22, 1976), no forfeiture had been declared.

"I say the committee didn't determine at that time (Feb. 21, 1975) they would not pay the benefits. The committee simply determined that it would be called in for arbitration. In other words, we did not determine he would not be paid his benefits." (Dep. Richard K. Klein P. 15 Lines 17-20)

The depositions of the other two members of the Administrative Committee also demonstrate that no forfeiture was declared on February 21, 1975; March 7, 1975; or at any time.

The deposition of Eugene Fortuna, the company Controller, a Trustee of the funds, and the accountant for the Plan, demonstrates that as of December 31, 1975, (almost 12 months later), no forfeiture of the vested account benefits of plaintiff had occurred. (Dep. of Eugene Fortuna P. 20, lines 6-26; P. 21, lines 1-3) plaintiff's vested account benefits were still shown as posted to his account on the official ledger sheet as of December 31, 1975. (Dep. of Eugene Fortuna P. 21, lines 1-3)

No issue of fact exists concerning whether or not the committee forfeited plaintiff's vested account benefits within the required ten (10) days.

The minutes of the Administrative Committee, the testimony of the three members of the committee and the Trustee and accountant for the plan all demonstrate that no forfeiture was declared at any time, let alone within the required ten (10) days.

Since no forfeiture was declared within ten (10) days after notification of termination by the company or at all, the lower Court found there was no issue of fact and the right of the Administrative Committee to declare a forfeiture had expired. The decision of the lower Court stated:

"That the defendants failed to follow the provisions of the Profit Sharing Plan, having failed to make a "Determination of Forfeiture" as required by the plan and having failed to establish the right to forfeit the plaintiff's Profit Sharing Account, are not entitled to retain the funds due plaintiff and the defendants, having failed to determine the funds would be paid to plaintiff over a period of time, and having failed to follow the provisions of the plan are obligated to pay plaintiff the sums due plaintiff together with interest accrued thereon." (R432)

The foregoing decision was based upon the provisions of the plan and the undisputed facts. The respondents request that it be upheld and sustained by this Court.

#### POINT II

JAMES BURROWS WAS AUTOMATICALLY ENTITLED TO PAYMENT OF HIS VESTED BENEFITS IN ONE LUMP SUM WITHIN SIXTY (60) DAYS OF HIS TERMINATION WITH THE COMPANY.

James Burrows had been an employee of the company for approximately fifteen (15) years. He had become a participant in the plan and had accumulated a total gross balance in his account of \$25,183.06 as of December 31, 1974. (R 345)

His account had become 85% vested as of December 31, 1974 and as such James Burrows was entitled to vested benefits of \$21,405.60 upon his termination with the company. (R345) The foregoing facts are undisputed and are admitted by defendants-appellants.

payment of the benefits was automatic under the terms of the Plan. Article VI "Distribution of Benefits", paragraph 2 (a) provides the following:

If a participant's employment with the Company is terminated, except for retirement or by death and except as provided in paragraph 7 of this Article, after he has been a full time employee of the Company for two (2) years or more, he shall have a vested interest in the amount then standing to his credit equal to ten percent (10%) of such amount plus ten percent (10%) of such amount for each full year of full time employment in excess of two (2), up to a total vested interest in such amount of eighty-five (85%) percent. Within sixty (60) days of such termination data he shall be paid the amount standing to his credit in one lump sum, or, if the Committee elects to pay him such sum in approximately equal annual installments over a period of years not in excess of ten (10), he shall be paid the first of equal annual installments within sixty (60) days of such termination data. (R 85)

The foregoing provisions of the Plan demonstrate that upon termination of an employee, the vested benefits must be paid within sixty (60) days unless the committee takes affirmative action to defer payment of the benefits over a maximum period of ten (10) annual equal yearly installments.

The committee took no action to make a determination of deferred payment of benefits. After the expiration of sixty (60) days, the right to make a determination of deferred payments expired and plaintiff became entitled to a lump sum distribution of his benefits and the lower Court so found:

"... the defendants having failed to determine the funds would be paid to the plaintiff over a period of time... are obligated to pay plaintiff the sums due the plaintiff, together with interest accrued thereon." (R 432)

It is admitted by defendants-appellants, that the committee did not determine that it would pay benefits to plaintiff over an extended or deferred period and the foregoing decision of the lower Court is supported by the provisions of the plan and undisputed facts.

### POINT III

THE LOWER COURT'S DECISION WAS BASED UPON  
THE FAILURE OF THE DEFENDANTS-APPELLANTS  
TO FORFEIT THE PLAINTIFF'S VESTED BENEFITS  
DUE UNDER THE PLAN.

Throughout defendants-appellants brief it continually refers to alleged "issues" of fact regarding the conduct or alleged misconduct of James Burrows and continually claims the lower Court's decision was based upon a resolution of issues of fact which were in dispute. A representative summary of such allegations is found at page 10 of defendants-appellants brief as follows:



"The lower Court addressed itself to this particular question and found that, as a matter of law, the acts of the plaintiff did not constitute material dishonesty or the failure to follow the instructions of the Board of Directors. At pages 477 through 482 of the transcript of the hearing on the Motion for Summary Judgment, the Court discussed a theory that the acts of the plaintiff had to relate to his employment in order that the right to forfeit be invoked and, once again, the Court found, as a matter of law, these acts did not relate to his employment and, therefore, the right to forfeit was not established."

These claims and others like them throughout the entirety of defendant's-appellant's Brief are totally unsupported by the record.

The lower Court's decision makes no reference whatsoever to the conduct or alleged misconduct of James Burrows.

"1. That the defendants failed to follow the provisions of the Profit Sharing plan, having failed to make a determination of "forfeiture" as required by the plan and having failed to establish the right to forfeit the plaintiff's Profit Sharing Account, are not entitled to retain the funds due plaintiff and the defendants, having failed to determine the funds would be paid to plaintiff over a period of time, and having failed to follow the provisions of the plan, are obligated to pay plaintiff the sums due plaintiff together with interest accrued thereon." (R 432)

The "issues", if any, relating to the conduct or alleged misconduct of James Burrows and the interpretation of the meaning of "material dishonesty" were not decided by the lower Court. The lower Court

found that no forfeiture was declared by the plan Committee and therefore the determination of other "issues" became unnecessary.

Although the lower Court explored the other "issues" thoroughly during oral argument, it did not base its decision upon them.

#### POINT IV

##### DEFENDANTS DID NOT RAISE ANY ISSUES OF FACT AT THE TRIAL LEVEL.

The question of whether or not the conduct or alleged misconduct of James Burrows constituted material dishonesty was not decided by the lower Court and is not, before this Court now.

The defendants-appellants claim that by merely contending an issue of fact exists, their contention alone precludes a Summary Judgment.

Rule 56 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure requires that after a Motion for Summary Judgment is filed, the defending party may not rely upon mere contentions or allegations alone to raise a genuine issue for trial. Rule 56 (e) provides as follows:

"When a Motion for Summary Judgment is made and supported as provided in this Rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of his pleading, but his response by Affidavits or as otherwise provided in this Rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. If he does not so respond, Summary Judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against him."

The case of Reliable Furniture vs. Fidelity Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc. 16 Utah 2nd 211, 398 p2nd 685 (1965) does not nullify Rule 56 (e) as contended by defendants-appellants in their brief. The Reliable Furniture case involved a dismissal of an action by the trial Court at a pre-Trial conference even though no motions for Summary Judgment or supporting Affidavits had been filed. This Court in the Reliable Furniture Company case stated the following:

"It is appropriate to reiterate that the dismissal of an action at pre-Trial, which peremptorily turns a party out of Court, is a drastic action which should be used sparingly and with great caution. This is especially true where the dismissal is ordered without any Motion for Summary Judgment being filed to put the party on notice of such contemplated action and afford him an opportunity to meet it." (Emphasis added)

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